
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

Notice of a Meeting 
 

Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Monday, 4 July 2011 at 10.00 am 
County Hall, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

Membership 
 

Chairman -   
Deputy Chairman -   
 

Councillors: Lawrie Stratford 
Carol Viney 

John Goddard 
Alyas Ahmed 

 

Anthony Gearing 
Stewart Lilly 

Susanna Pressel 
John Sanders 

 

Bill Service 
Alan Thompson 

 

 

Notes:  
Date of next meeting: 5 September 2011 

 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Community safety; anti-social behaviour; crime and the fear of crime; fire and rescue; 

consumer protection; emergency planning; police issues; coroner’s service; gypsies and 
travellers; drugs and alcohol awareness; road safety (police, trading standards, fire and 
rescue); adult learning (oversight of the adult learning service in provider mode); libraries; 
museums and heritage; the arts; archives; leisure and recreation; registration service; 
community cohesion; equalities and social inclusion; voluntary and community sector. 

• The functions of the responsible authorities (local authorities, fire and rescue authorities, 
police authorities, the police, primary care trusts and the Probation Service) which comprise 
a Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership/Community Safety Partnership. 

• Those regulatory functions of the Planning & Regulation Committee not falling within the 
remit of the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee. 

 

How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 
Chairman - Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
  E.Mail: lawrie.stratford@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Sean Gibson, Tel: (01865) 815482 

sean.gibson@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor June 2011 

Public Document Pack



 

 

About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically 
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 
630,000 residents. These include: 
 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 
the fire service roads  trading standards 
land use  transport planning waste management 
 

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. 
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about 
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual 
members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
• Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 
• Representing the community in Council decision making  
• Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full 
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are 
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be 
considered in closed session 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Election of Chairman for the Current Council Year  
 

2. Election of Deputy Chairman for the Current Council Year  
 

3. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

4. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

5. Minutes (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

6. Speaking to or petitioning the Committee  
 

7. Director's Update  
 

 10.25 
 
John Jackson (Director of Social & Community Services) and David Ethridge (Chief Fire 
Officer) to report. 

8. Scrutiny Work Programme 2011-2012  
 

 11.00 
 
Contact Officer: Sean Gibson, Corporate Performance Officer, 01865 815482 
 
Draft work programme 2011-2012 to be distributed separately. 
 
The Committee is invited to approve the work programme. 

 SCRUTINY MATTERS 

9. Report on changes to Museums Service (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

 11.15 
 
Contact Officer: Martyn Brown, Hertitage & Arts Officer, Social & Community Services, 
01993 814114 
 
The Committee is invited to comment on a briefing by the Heritage & Arts Officer. 
 



- 2 - 
 

 

 

10. Emergency Planning preparations for winter 2011-2012 (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

 11.35 
 
Contact Officer: Bethan Morgan, County Emergency Planning Officer, 01865 323760  
 
The Committee is invited to receive an update from the County Emergency Planning 
Officer. 

 

11. Crime & Disorder Partnerships Community Strategies 2011-2012  
 

 11.55 
 
Contact Officer: Ruth Whyte, Manager, Safer Communities Unit, 01865 815396 
 
Paper and summary of strategies to distributed separately. 
 
The Committee is invited to comment on the Crime & Disorder Community Strategies. 

 BUSINESS PLANNING 

12. Forward Plan  
 

 12.15 
 
Committee to consider any items of interest. 

13. Close of Meeting: 12.20 approx  
 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�����������	
�����	

�
������������
���	

������
�

�
�����������������	
�������	�
�	�������
�������������	��	
��������������	��
��	����	
������������
�
���������
�

�

�������
�������� ���	������������������������ ��	�����������
�

� ���	�������������!�	���"#�������������	$�
���	�������%��	�&�������
���	�������'�����(�&���	��
���	�������������	����	����)&����
���	�����������		��'�������
���	�������*�������+����
���	�������,	���-��.
�����)/0��		���
���	�������1���%����
�
�

	���������
�

�

2�������������	
� ����	�&�3��	������������'�������	���,�+�����
�#�+���4�����
���������-����/�������
�

'������������	
�
�

%��	�%��(��	��#����������������5������	�������+�����

���� !������ 	������������ ����
6� 1������� 2�33�� ,���	
� 7���� ��� 8����	
� ���	������ 5�

�����	�����������
9� ����	�8�������#������������-����/�������
�� ����	�8�������#������������-����/�������
�
���� ����	
��� 
���
		��� ����
������ 	��� ��		����� �����	�� ���� ����������	
����
���	�
����������������	��
��	��������������	������	
������	���	�����
	����������������
��������	�������	�	������	
���	���������
������
	
������������	������������������
��	� ��	� ������� � 
��
��� ��� 	��� ������� ���� �����	�� ��������� �����	�� ����
������������
	
������������	��������		������	��	����
������
��	����
�
�
�

""#$""� ��	%	������	���&��
����
'���
�	��������	�
�
�
����
",
�	���:����$�
�
���	�������,	���-��.
�����)/0��		�������	�����	�������������	�������,��	�8������	��
�
���	�������1���%��������	�����	�������������	�����������������������
�

""($""� '��%�����	
��	�� �
������� )� �������'�
���
	���	
��*��&��+�
������
",
�	���:����$�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 5

Page 1



�����

�
:�	���
�

"",$""�
�
������
",
�	���:����$�
�

�	������6;��<����	�������%������7����������������������������	�����	����������	
�����

��	�� �������� ���� �����	������� �	�� ����� ���(� ���� �	)
��	
� �	�� 3��	
� ����� 3��
���	�������=����	�
����	��
�

�	�������;��<����	�����������		��'������������ �������������3��	�����(�	
��3����
���� >�	)
��	
0� ����	�	
� ��� +���	������ ��� ��	� ��3�������� � ,�� ���� ��	���� ������� ����
���������	�����
�+�	�����������������3���	�)��������	�	
���>/	)
��	
0����3���	����������
����������������
�

"-.$""� ����+�
���	�	��������	
�
���*���	

�������
",
�	���:���?$�
�
:����@�������������(�����������������������+����
�

"-"$""� '�����	�/����'�����
",
�	���:���A$�
�
1������� ����� �����+��� �����#�+��� 4�����
�� "������ -���� /������$� �	�� %��	� %��(��	�
"#����������������5������	�������+����$��
�
#�+���4�����
������������	<�
�
8����	
����	������
�

��� ,�������
��������	���>*�������������<�*������#����0������3��	���3�������3��
����#�������	������*���	����B		�+����	��	���(������	��������3�	���/�����0��
*���+�������B	��
����8������	���������������������	��������	�3��	
������
�+����3���������	��������	����������3���3��������(���	��������������	�����	�
��������	
���B��������������������	����������(	���������3����������	��������	�
���������3���������3��3���	�������

��� ,	��	�������	�����3��	��������������	��������������(���������	�����������
���	������	�
�������1�
��������B	+����
����	��'������,��������������������3��
�	����������	��	�������	�������������3��������

��� #��������	������3��	�����������*��(�	
������������	������	�����	�C��	��
��	�
���������������������������	����0�8����	
����	��������������,����C����
B������	�����	�#�����	������3��	����������

�
/D���������������������	������'���	�������
�
'���	������� ���� �	�����(�	� �� ��+���� ��� ���� ��������	� ������(� �	� ��
��� ��� ���	
��� ���
�����	���� ������� �	�� ���� '�����	
� *���� �����	���� 
��	
� �����
�� '�������	��� � 8���
������	
�*������	���	��������������������������+�������	��3���������������	�����������

Page 2



�����

��	��	
� ����� ���� ���	��� ���	���� ��� ���� '������ ,���������� � 8���� ����� ����� ��� ����
����	���������+�	
��+�	����������������(�	
�����	
���	��������'�������
�
#�+���4�����
���D����	��� �	� �����	��� ��� ��@������	� ����� ����������� �������	� �����
�		���� 3��
��� ��� EF�������� �	�� ����� ���	��� ���	���� ���� ���������� ������	���	�	
�
�����	�� ��	��	
� ���������	����� �7���+���� ���������� ������� ���E?������� ���� �������	
�
������
�
-����5�1���������+����
�
8���������	�/D����������-����5�1���������+������������������������	�*��(����������������
����� ��� ���� 	���� ���� 	����	��� ������� ��� 3�� ��������� �	�� ��)����	������ � /D����������
���������������������@�����	���
�
8������������	�����������������������������D������������	�����������������������AAG�����
3��	������������ �8�������� ���������������3���� ����(���+���	
������	��	��������	����
����������������������������������
���������
�
H�� ��� ���� ����� ��
������ ��+�� 3��	� �	� ��������	� �+���� ���� ���� ��� ����� ����� ��)���
�	
�	��� �	� ������� � ,��	
� ����� /D����������� ��+�� ������ ������ ��+�� 3��	� �	+��+��I�
��	��	��7��������������7������������������	��*��(�	
����������
�
/D�������������������	
������	�	��������������*��(�������������	������������������������
�����	���	����	�������	�������	������	�����������
�
#�+���4�����
������� ���3���� ������������� �	� ������	�����1����������������� ���������(� �	�
��)����	���	
� C��	�� ��
�������� ��������� � 7�� 	����� ����� ���� �������	��� �	+�����	�� ����
�����+����+����3������3����G���	�������/D��������������3�	���������������������	���	�
�����	�����1������������� �������D�����	������	�����������	� ��(�� ����*��(������ �������
�������������
�
8���������-����/���������������	����3�����	
��	������	����	������������3�����
�
8���������-����/�������������(����3������������	�� ���� ��(������������� ���� ������ �7��
��������������-����5�1������,������?��������	��������������������	�3��
�����������(�
��
������ ��
����������������� ���� �	����	�� ��� ��������� �,�������	�� ������������	������
E���������3����������	���3��+����������	���	����	����-����D�������������@������	���
��� �������� ����	�� �����/D������������	�(��������	
����	
�	�����7�	���� ������� ���	�
���� ��� *��(������ ��� ������ ����� ��� 	����� ��� 3�� �3��� ��� ���+���� �	� �	
�	�� ���	�
	����������
�
#�+���4�����
�������� ����� >*����	� ������0� ������3������� �������� ��+��� ������� 3���
�����*��(��������������+������	���
������������	
���
�
8���������-����/����������������������������������+��3��	�����������	�������	��������
3���������������	���
�
8�����������������	���(������������	�����1��������3�	������������������	����������
���C���� ����	
� ��� �	� �	��� � 8��� ������ /������ ����� ����� /D���������� ��� ��	������
�����	���+��� �+��� ���� 	�D�� ���� ��	����� � 7�� ������ ����� �	�� ���� ��	��	
� ���� 3��	�

Page 3



�����

���+����� ��� �������� ��������� ���� �D������� 3��� ����
�� �������	�� ��� ��� 
����	
� ���� �	��
���	��	�	����������������	��	������������
�
#��������������������������	����	�8������!��������������3����������
�
%��	�%��(��	�����������	<�
�
��

���
������
�
%�����7��3������������������	������������������������*�������%����:�	����������������
������������������1�������
�	������!���)��������8�������/D�������������	������	����
�������	����+��� �	� ���� *����� ���<� ���	������� #�+��� 1�3�����	� �	�� ����	� =������
"7�������������
��5�8��	���������	���������5������	�������+����$��
�
8��� ������� *����� ���� ��� ���� ��� ������ ����� �������3��� �������� �	�� ��� ����� �	� ����
�������� ��� �����	��	
� �� #��������� � ����� ��	��	
� ���� 3��	� ����� �+����3��� 3��
�����	���� ���+����� �	�� 2���� /D���������� ��� �������� ����+������ ����	
� 
������ ��
��C���3��� ��� ����������
�� ��	�� ����	�������� �8�������������	�� ���3�����	����� ����
�����������������
�
8���+����	����������������������������	���

��������������������	�������������������
�����	����	����������������������������������������	���D��������������������������	������
���������	�� � B�� ��� ���		��� ��� �����	� ��

��� ��� 3�� �	� ����+�� ����������� ��	� 3�� ��
�����������������������+���	�����
�	���7�������'��		�	
����������	����3��	
���������
�	������������(������	������������	
����
�
8���������������3�������	���	�+���	��������	���������	��	��������������+�������	��������
����������	�����(�	�����
�

��3���� 	����� ����� ���(� �������� ���� ���	�	
� ��� ���� ������� ���� ��+�	
� +����
�������� � %��	� %��(��	� ������ 	��� ������ �� �������� ���	�	
� ������ 3��� ������ ����������
�������������������	
��
�
��3�������
�
��	��������	��	����+����	������3��������+����������������������	�
��������	����������(�	
�
�������������
����������3�������5�,����+������	�����	��	��������������	
����
�
B	� �����	��� ��� �� @������	� ����� ���	������� %��	� &����	� �	� �������� ����
����	��������	� ��� ����+�	
� ��� �	����� �� ���	������� ������� ��� ��3���� ��3�������� %��	�
%��(��	� �D����	��� ����� ���� ���	���� ����� ��(�� �	��� �����	�� ���� ��3�������,��� ������ ���
���+������>��������	��+���	���������	�0����+�����
�
%������7��������������	���� ����������@������	��������������3��	���+�������� �����
���	�����
�
�
�
�
�

Page 4



�����

�
�

"--$""� �*�
�����%%����	%����������
����	
��
'�0����
",
�	���:���F$�
�
�����8���	��	����������	���3����8������!������'������
�+�������	�����	��
�
���������	�������	�
�
��������	���3������(���3���J<�
�

•� ������
�������������I�����)���?�
•� ��������+�����	����������	����������������	
�����������
•� *��
���

�
������
�������������������)���?�
�
K� 8��������������������������������	���	�������������	�����
K� 8���	�����������+���3��������	����������'�������
K� 8�������������������	����������������������������������
K� 8�������+�������	������	������������3�����	����������3�������������	����	����	���

�	����������	������
K� 8�����(���3������������	����+������������������	����(�������������������
K� 8����������������	�����������������	���	���
�
#���+����'��	����
������������)����<�
�
����1����������2!��!�����������������������2������1���3�
•� 1������������+������+����	����
��	������������	�3��"-4�
•� 1����������������@������+��������3��54�
•� B	�������������������	����������+����	����
��	������������	�������	C�������6-4�
•� B	�������������������	��������������������@������+�����������"54�
•� 
��	���	�������������	��������������������D�������������3�+��-54�
•� B����+�������������	���+��������+�������������������3��
������+����	����	��+�������

�������3�+�������������+����������;���������	���
�
��������!����2��7����8��9������������2��9�8����
•� B	�����������	��3����������������	���3�������#..�
•� ,����+���	��		�������������	�����
������".4�*
4�����'������/���������'��/���	��

����������	���3����
�
���������1������1�������������2������������1��2!���
•� B	�����������	��3��������	��������	�������������+���3��54�
�
��������+�����	����������	����������������	
�����������
�
#���� ������� 
���� ��������	��� �
��	��� ���
���� ���� �������� ��@������+�� ������ �	��
+����	����
��	��� ���������	������ �	C����� �:��3����������������	���3�������� ���������

Page 5



�����

�����	������3�����	����	����	����	�������������	�������������	�������+�������D�����	���
��������	������+���	���	�����������
�
*��
���
8������ !������ ������� ����� �� EA��� ��������	� �+��� ?� ������� � 8��� ������ ��	���3���
�D����	��� ����� '������ &��	�� ���� �������� ������� ���� 3����� ����� 	�� ��	���������	�

�+�	�����������������	������7���+����8������!������'�����������	��������������	
�����
3��
�����������	��
�
E?6����+�	
�� ����3��	� ���	������� +��� ���� �����0��'�������+����������
��� �	����L����
*����� *��
��� ��������� ��� ������� ��(�	� ���	� ������	
� 3��
���� � �������� ���	
���
��+�� 3��	� ����� ��� ���� ��	�
������ ����������� �	�� ���	�� ���� �	� ������ ��� ��������
����	���
��3�������
�
M������	��
�

��	���������+����<�
�
B	������	��������@������	�����������������	�� ������������	���3�������� ����� ����
��
������������� ��� ����������� ���� ���	���	����3���	������������������3�� ��(�	� ����	�����
����������������>3��(�������0�������������+����3�����/����������������	���
��	������3��
�	�����	����
�
���	�������%��	�&����	���(����������
��������������	�������	���������������������
���� 3�� ���� 8������ !������ '������ ,��������� �	� �� ��3���� �����	
�� � '������ ������ ����

��������	�>��������0�������������������	�����3��������
�
���	�������'�����(�&���	����(�������������	���D���������	
�����������	�������������
��)����+�������7���������(��������	��������	��3��������	��3�����������������������
���
������	
�� �8�����������	���3�������� �����������������+�� ��������������	�������� ����
�����	
��
�
���	�������*�������+������(�������������������*��(�����;/D����������3�������	����������	���
���	
��	�������	�����,�?����������	��������������3���D��	������������������������,�?���
8�����������	���3����������������������������(�1����'�����	
�����������+�����
�
8����������	����	(���������������	���3����������������	�����	���	�������������(����
������������	�/D�����������
�

"-:$""�	������	
� 	�� &��
�
�*�
� ����� �	�
��%/�� �%%���%� 
	
���
%�
'�
�����
��
�	;�	�'�*�����
",
�	���:���6$�
�
1�������2�33�",���	
�7�������8����	
����	������5������	����������$���������������
����*����	
����B���
���
�	���8��������3��	��������	
��	�/D������������	���%�	�����
�������,
�����	�����	����������������������������������������
�
8��� ����� ���(�� 3�� ���	
� ����� ��� ����� �	���+������ �	�� �� �����	������	� ���+�� ���
��
���
��� �������	��3�����������������	�3��	
����������	��� �:���+���	������ ����
���
��	�����	��	
�����3��	��	��+���������	
����������������3���������������������
	�����

Page 6



�����

����� ����� ��� 	������ ���� ���� ����� ��� 
������ �	�����
�	���� �	�� 3����� ��	������ �	��
��	����	����
�
&�+�	� ���� ��+���� 	������ ��� ���� ����+������ �������� ���� 3�� ���� ������ �������� ����
��	����	������3����������������������1�������2�33��
�
1�������2�33������ ����� ���	��� ���	���� �������� �����	�������� ��������(���	�������
�	����	��	������7���+�����	��	��������	������	������������	������	��	���������+�������
���������
�
B	������	������@������	����(���3�������������1���������	�����������������
�����	��
����3��	��D��	������	�������������������������+��3��	����������	����������+�����	�
����� ��	�� � 7�� ����� ����� ���� ����� ������ ��� ���(� ����� ��
�	������	�� ���� ���(� �����
+��	���3����	��+�������"�
������.�	��,�+����*�����$��
�
�

"-6$""� �	�'���������
",
�	���:���9$�
�
����	�8������������������������������
��������3��	
�������	����	������	
�������������
�����	��3�������� �����4	+���	��	��5�4��	����-����5�1������� �'���������� �	������ ��)
���
	�	
� ���������� ��� ���+���� ��	�
���	��� �����+����	� �	�� 
����	���� ���	������	
�
�	��������	� �	�� ���������	
� ������� ����������� �	�� ���	�����	
� ����������� ���� �� ���(�
���
���������3�����	������	�������������
�
����	�������������������������	����������H	�����:����	��#���������1������������	����

���������
�
���	�����������		��'����������������������������3���������3������3���3�����������	��
�	������������	����������������������������	
���3��	
��
������	����D����	��������
�
���	������� %��	� &������� ��������� ����� �	� ����� �	��
������ ��������� ������ 3��
3�	�������� 3��	
�	
� ��
������ �+�	���� 
����	��� �	�� ����	�	
�� �	�� ����� 3����� �������
���	������������3������
�
���	�������*�������+���� ������� ���� ���������7&!���	���+����(�	
��	�,�?��������������
����:��3����*��������������	��
�
����	� 8������ 	����� ���� �����	���� �	�� ����� ����� �� ���(� 3����� ��������������� 3��
������	�������	
��������(����
�������
�

"-5$""� ������	
��	%��
",
�	���:����$�
�
����	� 8������ ��������� ����� �� ������ �	� >-������ ,���	
���	��� ���� ����� 1��������

�3�����	
��	��B	����	����	�
���	������/D�������������	������	����-����5�1������
���+���0�����3��	���3�������������	���������	�3����3�	��� "���
�������$�� ������	��
����������������������	�*��(�������������	������������(��	������������	
���	����
�

Page 7



�����

"-<$""� ������
��=	�+���	���

���
",
�	���:�����$�
�
8����������	���(��������������(����
���������3����	��������3��	����������������
	�D�� �����	
�� �	�� ���	(��� �����	�� ���3���� ���� ������ ��	���3����	� ����	
� ���� �����
������
�

"-#$""� �	�=��'��%�
��
",
�	���:�����$�
�
:����	
�����	��������������������	������
�

"-($""� "->:.��%	���	��
����
���
",
�	���:�����$�

�
�
� �	�����������
� �
#���������
	�	
� � �

Page 8



 1

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee   
                                                                                    4 July 2011  
 
Oxfordshire Museums Service 
 
1. Oxfordshire County Council assumed responsibility for museums in 1974 
under the powers of the Public Libraries and Museums Act, 1964. There is no 
statutory minimum service. However the Council has acquired museum 
collections over the last 35 years (and previously under a joint provision with the 
City Council) and these are held in trust for present and future generations. The 
Council has a responsibility to care for these collections which represent the 
material cultural heritage of the county. 
 
Key outcomes of the Oxfordshire Museums Service (2010/11) 
 
                                                         Target                      Actual 
Number of visits to 
The Oxfordshire Museum (TOM)     170,000                   167,641 
Web site visits                                    70,000                     94,790 
Learning & Access (adults)                  3,400                       3,687 
Learning & Access (children)               2,400                       2,101 
School visits TOM                                2,000                       2,232 
 
Volunteer hours                                    2,600                       4,269 
 
 
2. Following the decisions of the Cabinet and Council in January and February to 
reduce the budget of the Oxfordshire Museums Service by 40% over the 
following three years, managers have prepared plans to meet this reduction and 
currently those proposals are in a process of formal consultation with the staff. 
The gross budget of the OMS for 2011/12 is £1,144,000; the income target is 
£198,000. The net budget is therefore £946,000. £160,000 is included in that 
figure as a grant to the Cogges Trust, leaving £786,000 for the museum service. 
The budget reduction agreed by the Council is £200,000 in 2012, and £100,000 
in 2013 (38% in total). 
 
3. At the same time, the service is having to respond to an anticipated reduction 
in income from partner museums (Museum of Oxford, Abingdon Museum, 
Banbury Museum, Vale and Downland Museum), and to the changes at Cogges. 
 
4. The museum service budget comprises salaries and staffing costs(83%), 
supplies and services (8%) and premises costs (8%). There is no opportunity to 
reduce the premises costs; the supplies and services budgets are already very 
low, so there is no choice other than to cut staffing. In order to meet the 
reductions, the service is planning to reduce staffing from 30 fte to 15 fte over the 
period.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 9



 2

 
5. A new structure has been developed which aims to maintain the assets of the 
service and the broad skills base the service currently enjoys and needs  in order 
to undertake work for our partners as well as meeting the needs of the County’s 
collections and service. Broadly the new structure proposes three sections: 
 

• Public services and access to collections focused at the Oxfordshire 
Museum, Woodstock 

• Curatorial and collection services at the Museum Resources Centre, 
Standlake 

• Learning and access, countywide 
 
6. In addition it is proposed to support a ‘business unit’ through 2012 which will 
offer specialist conservation, collection care and technical support services to 
partner museums (and other organizations).  
 
7. Given the reduction in staffing, and in order to maintain services, all sections 
will become increasingly dependent on the support of volunteers. It is proposed 
to appoint a ‘Volunteers Coordinator’ to manage the recruitment of volunteers. 
The post will also manage the ‘front of house’ staff at The Oxfordshire Museum.   
 
8. The formal consultations with staff are planned to continue until 14 July; Staff 
Support, Unison and Human Resources are involved in the process which aims 
to consult all staff on the plans and to ensure appropriate and fair procedures, in 
accordance with Council policies, for the implementation of the plans. It is 
planned to implement the new structure in two phases from April 2012. 
 
 
The Oxfordshire Museum 
9. The Oxfordshire Museum (TOM) was established in Woodstock in 1964 as the 
County Museum. It is housed in a fine 17th/18th century town house in the heart of 
the town. In recent years it has been refurbished and redisplayed, with awards of 
over £2.5 million from the Heritage Lottery Fund and support from other grant aid 
organizations and from the community (through the Friends organization). A 
capital contribution from OCC over the last three years of £150,000 has enabled 
the redisplay of two further galleries and improvements to retail and visitor 
services across the site.  TOM currently attracts c 170,000 visitors per year.  
 
10. The staffing reductions will reduce front of house staff, curatorial and support 
staff. The service is working with the Friends of TOM to seek volunteers to help 
staff the galleries and museum reception, and to undertake support tasks. 
 
11. Following a report to the Cabinet in June, it is anticipated that a lease and 
management arrangements will be confirmed enabling work to start on the 
construction of a new building within the TOM site to house the Soldiers of 
Oxfordshire (SOFO) collections and exhibit them. This new development is 

Page 10



 3

funded entirely by SOFO. The SOFO museum aims to illustrate the impact of 
conflict on the people and places of Oxfordshire. 
 
12. Work is due to start on site in July 2011 with the demolition of the current 
Pratten building in advance of construction work starting in the autumn. 
Completion is planned for 2013/14. 
 
13. In the meantime SOFO has been successful in obtaining a grant of £50,000 
from the Heritage Lottery Fund to support a new temporary exhibition due to 
open at TOM in the autumn on the theme Children and War. This to be 
supported by an extensive outreach programme involving schools and the wider 
community delivered in partnership with the County service and others. 
 
Curatorial and collection services at the Museum Resources Centre 
14. The Museum Resources Centre (MRC) at Standlake houses the County 
Council’s museum collections of archaeology, history and art from Oxfordshire. 
This resource is used by TOM and the partner museums for exhibitions, learning 
and outreach. In 2010/11 an extension to the building, funded by Oxfordshire 
Council with additional contributions from 106 agreements, was completed to 
increase storage capacity, improve collection care (particularly for the textile 
collections) and to provide more space for volunteers and researchers using the 
collection. 
 
15. Curatorial, conservation, documentation and technical staff are based at  
MRC; from 2012 that staffing will be reduced to part-time curators for 
archaeology and social history; part-time documentation and conservation staff. 
Opportunities to improve access to collections and to enhance collection care 
and documentation will be limited. 
 
16. A significant number of volunteers already support work at MRC – assisting 
with documentation and collection care. That support will be encouraged and 
more volunteers recruited to support the work of the remaining staff. 
 
Learning and Access 
17. The Learning and Access team provide a range of learning opportunities at 
TOM – formal learning for schools, family ‘drop-in’ sessions, workshops and 
lectures for adult audiences; they also take collections out to schools and to adult 
groups (day care and residential homes and other community groups). This work 
is highly valued by the recipients and has attracted wide support from Adult 
Social Care (particularly for reminiscence and creative work with adults) and 
Children, Education and Families (for work with primary schools).  
 
18. The reduction in staffing will reduce the level of service that can be provided 
– with less visits to schools and groups of older people. 
 
The Business Unit 

Page 11



 4

19. In the current year the museum service anticipates an income of £53,000 
from partner museums. The museum service provides specialist conservation 
and collection care for these museums, documents the collections, and manages 
a programme of changing exhibitions. These services are charged to the partner 
museums ‘at cost’. However, the future potential for income generation is 
uncertain; other local authorities and individual museums are facing their own 
similar budget pressures, so the opportunities for externally funded work are 
reducing.  
 
20. The Business Unit allows some capacity and a broader range of skills to be 
maintained through 2012 for work for the partner museums (and others). If the 
unit is successful and can generate sufficient income, it will be retained; but if it 
proves unable to generate income, then it will be closed down. The unit will be 
monitored closely over the next 9 months in order to assess its likely future. 
 
Cogges 
21. Previously part of the museum service, Cogges is about to be transferred to a 
new independent charitable Trust. The Trust hopes to sign a 30 year lease on 
the site before the end of June; a new Director, funded and managed by the 
Trust, has been appointed, and the Trust aims to reopen the site in July. 
 
22. The new Trust plans to relaunch Cogges with the themes of ‘food’ and 
‘sustainability’. The historic room settings in the ground floor of the Manor House 
will be retained; elsewhere the Trust is planning to introduce a resident 
‘smallholder’, to provide catering and retailing, and to offer a programme of 
creative activities for schools and community groups. A very successful 
Volunteers Day was run on 14th May attended by over 100 people who were 
briefed as to the new Trust’s vision for the future development of Cogges and the 
role to be played by volunteers. A recruitment process for volunteers is now 
underway. 
 
Issues for the future 
 

a. Capacity: the loss of staff reduces the capacity of the service overall.  This 
will impact on the ability of the service to continue to work successfully in 
partnerships (currently the museums service works closely with the 
Oxfordshire Museums Council and others supporting museums 
countywide). It will also reduce the service’s ability to apply for external 
funding. 

b. Loss of expertise and skills: the reduction in staffing will reduce the 
breadth of specialist skills available to the service (and to partner 
museums); if the Business Unit is not able to sustain itself and is closed, 
then this will exacerbate the issue. 

c. Uncertainty of income: in addition to the uncertainty over future income for 
the Business Unit, other income from retailing, catering, commission on 

Page 12



 5

sales, room hire at TOM is also less secure in the current economic 
climate. 

d. Increasing reliance on volunteers: the service has welcomed the support 
of volunteers for many years – adding value to core work and undertaking 
very valuable support roles; however in the proposed new structure the 
service will become increasingly reliant on volunteers. The involvement of 
more volunteers across a range of activities will increase demands on 
management.   

e. Oxfordshire Heritage Partnership: the Oxfordshire Museums Service is 
working in partnership with Oxford University Museums in order to bid to 
become a ‘core’ museum with the opportunity of attracting significant 
external funding (from the Museums Libraries and Archives/Arts Council) 
for increasing access to the museum collections. Criteria for the selection 
of ‘core’ museums are due to be published in July with the outcome of 
applications announced before Christmas. A pilot project, funded by MLA, 
has already begun – drawing on collections from across the county. A 
draft Heritage Strategy for Oxfordshire has been written, in preparation for 
the bid, and the first consultation meeting for this will be held on 21 June. 

f. Change in governance: during 2010/11, an external consultant was 
engaged by the museum service, funded by the MLA, to advise on 
possible changes to the governance structure (a number of museums 
around the country have been encouraged to undertake this work). The 
consultant advised that in view of the current development with SOFO and 
the changes already being considered for the museum service, no change 
to governance should be planned at present, but that a future change, 
possibly to an independent Trust might be considered in due course. 

 
 
 
 
Martyn Brown                                                   Carol Anderson 
County Heritage and Arts Officer                     Museum Service Manager 
 
 
June 2011 
 
 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee 
 

4 July 2011 
 

Winter preparations and lessons from severe weather 
 

Dealing with resilience arrangements following lessons learnt from snow events and 
preparations being made for future events. 
 
1. Purpose 
 
The purpose of this briefing is to: 
 
1.1 Inform the Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee of progress to 

increase resilience to snow and severe weather events within the county council; 
and 

 
1.2 Outline action taken to improve plans and processes to improve the local response 

to severe weather incidents. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 In the last 18 months, Oxfordshire has experience several periods of heavy and 

prolonged snowfall where an emergency response was required to support critical 
services, partner agencies and the community.  

 
2.2 In response to the snow event in January 2010, a Severe Weather Plan was 

produced by the Emergency Planning Unit (EPU) in consultation with the District and 
City Councils to provide a more coordinated response to weather events.  This plan 
was published in November 2010 and was used by partners during a further snow 
event in December 2010.   

 
2.3 In response to Met Office issued weather warnings on 17th December 2010, the 

activation procedures in the Severe Weather Plan were followed which included a 
teleconference with internal and external response personnel to prepare services for 
the weather conditions and consultation with the Duty Director to activate the online 
Major Incident Reporting System (MIRS) for Monday 20th Dec in anticipation of 
significant disruption.    

 
2.4 In contrast to the snow event in January 2010, schools were closed for the 

Christmas period eliminating the requirement for the Council to publish school 
closures.  However, the proximity to the Christmas holidays – and in particular the 
fact snow fell on the last shopping Saturday before Christmas meant that many 
people continued to travel and were involved in extended traffic delays despite 
advice from emergency services to stay at home.  The time of year also meant that 
some agencies experienced a lower than usual availability of volunteer staff due to 
holiday commitments.    

 
3. Lessons identified and subsequent activity 
 
3.1 Review of Severe Weather Plan: The existence of the Severe Weather Plan and its 

use by responding agencies within Oxfordshire reinforced the view that such a plan 
was both required and useful in coordinating the activation activities of local 

Agenda Item 10

Page 15



agencies.  It is usual practice to review learning and amend plans following use and 
this process is underway within the EPU and with partner agencies to incorporate 
learning.  This review will also take account of changes to Met Office weather 
warning procedures and legislative and policy changes which affect the response 
such as changing approaches within the county to flood response following the 
Flood and Water Management Act as the plan covers flooding, snow, gales, heat 
wave and drought. 

 
3.2 Availability of 4x4 vehicles and volunteers: The availability and coordination of 

4x4 capabilities within the county was highlighted by all responders in the snow 
event of January 2010 where the Fire Service provided support to both OCC and 
NHS services.  Progress was made by December to review fleet and lease cars to 
increase access to 4x4 vehicles within many teams.  However, due to some 
shortfalls in provision and planning arrangements, initially the Fire & Rescue Service 
and later, the Integrated Transport Unit were required to manage an emegency 4x4 
cell to support the delivery of some critical services, particularly to rural areas.  The 
Environment & Economy Directorate, supported by the EPU will work to construct a 
4x4 plan which can be placed on standby in response to weather warnings and to 
gain an understanding of potential demand for such a service following changes to 
Home Support services within OCC.  Work is also underway via the Business 
Continuity Stakeholder Group (BCSG) to promote team-based reviews of 
transportation requirements and whether measures such as “snow-socks” are 
appropriate resilience measures for some teams. 

 
3.3 Review of holiday cover arrangements:  The timing of the snow in December 

2010, being close the Christmas holidays, meant that some holiday rotas had 
already started and many people who would normally be free to volunteer for 
emergency response were reluctant to interfere with Christmas arrangements.  
However, when the extent of the situation was understood, staff did come forward 
and the response was managed. The BCSG has raised this issue with all 
directorates to ensure that holiday and standby rotas are robust and that resilient 
standby arrangements are activated in response to weather warnings. 

 
3.4 Explore out of hours telephone answering for emergency situations: An area of 

learning for services throughout the weekend in December, was the pressure placed 
upon out-of-hours call handling arrangements already in place.  A number of 
comments through the debrief process related to arrangements to provide a high 
volume call handling capacity to respond to resident’s calls. Discussions are 
underway between the BCSG and the customer service centre to explore 
opportunities to offer this facility and via the BCSG, directorates have been asked to 
review the existing arrangements for out of hours call handling to ensure they have 
capacity to manage increased demand during an emergency.  

 
3.5 Facilitate multi-agency planning for emergency disruption on the A34: Travel 

disruption on the road network is an expected result of high levels of snow and 
freezing temperatures and responding agencies such as the Highways Agency and 
Police provide public advice on appropriate action for drivers.  Feedback from the 
two snow events in 2010 indicate that the OCC management of its highways 
improved, particularly with the provision of information on gritting routes via the 
website. However, the biggest disruption occurred on the A34 north, which is part of 
the Highway Agency network.  The EPU has agreement from partners to engage in 
a project to produce a plan for disruption the A34 with contributions from OCC 
Highways and Network Management, Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue, Thames Valley 
Police and Road Policing, Highway Agency, West Berkshire Council, Hampshire 

Page 16



County Council and BBC Oxford.  Good progress is being made to plan for a multi-
agency response and to potentially establish a “Traffic Cell” to support the tactical 
response to an incident on the A34 with stronger public information systems to 
inform road users on appropriate action to take. 

 
3.6 Continued community resilience activity: During 2010, the emergency planning 

unit with support from the EA, Environment & Economy, Social & Community 
Services and the District and City Councils, organised 4 events for Parish & Town 
councils to promote community resilience and the development of community 
emergency plans.  With the support of parish councils to distribute the “Are you 
ready?” booklet to households, promotion of the OCC community emergency plan 
template and the highways website and a focus on helping the vulnerable in 
communities, there was positive feedback from communities through the second 
snow period on resilience of communities and access to useful information.  A 
second round of similar events is planned for September-October 2011 to re-engage 
with Parish and Town Councils, to deliver further advice on personal and community 
resilience, give advice on action to be taken in response to severe weather including 
flooding and snow and to continue to support communities to develop their own 
emergency plans. 

 
4. Conclusion 
 
4.1 Lessons have been identified for an increased level of resilience and sharpening of 

business continuity arrangements to improve Oxfordshire County Council’s response 
to severe weather events.  The BCSG is managing the internal OCC reviews to 
increase our resilience to severe weather events and the associated weather 
warnings.   

 
4.2 Multi-agency partners are supporting the efforts to review existing plans and to 

produce new plans where a requirement has been identified, and in particular, 
efforts are being made to ensure that plans and processes are flexible to facilitate a 
response to a range of events and circumstances. 

 
4.3 Engagement with communities is resulting in the development of community 

emergency plans which complement the response plans held by statutory 
responders and this work stream will continue to be a priority within the emergency 
planning unit throughout 2011. 

 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Bethan Morgan 
   County Emergency Planning Officer 
Tel:   01865 323760 
 
June 2010 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	9 Report on changes to Museums Service
	10 Emergency Planning preparations for winter 2011-2012

